
Mayor 
James Kacsh 
Council Members 
Kristin Carpenter 
Tim Joyce 
Tom Bailer 
Robert Beedle 
Josh Hallquist 
David Reggiani 
James Burton 
City Manager 
Randy Robertson 
City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
Student Council 
New appointee 
New appointee 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 17, 2016 @ 7:00 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Agenda  

 
A. Call to order   
 

 B. Invocation and pledge of allegiance 
 
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the 
republic for which it stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with liberty and 
justice for all.  
 

C. Roll call 
 
Mayor James Kacsh, Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, Tom Bailer, 
Robert Beedle, Josh Hallquist, David Reggiani and James Burton 

 
D. Approval of Regular Agenda……..……..….............................................................................................. (voice vote) 
 
E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest 
 
F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
 
1. Guest Speakers 
 a. David Mitchell, Great Land Trust – Report on Stern Property at Shelter Cove…………………….... (page 1) 
 b. Joanie Behrends, Emergency Management info on upcoming “Prep Ex” oil spill drill 
 c. Kevin Quinn, Points North  
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items……….....…………………………..………………..…. (3 minutes per speaker) 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions            (HSB, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board) 
 a. Harbor Commission – Harbor Commission Resolution 12-15-01……………………………………….……… (page 9) 
4. Student Council Representative Report  
 
G. Approval of Consent Calendar……..…………………………………………………………………………..………… (roll call vote) 
 
5. Council concurrence of Mayor’s appointment of the 2016 Election Board…………………………………..…. (page 14) 
6. Record unexcused absence of Council member Robert Beedle from the 2/3/16 regular meeting 

 
H. Approval of Minutes……………………………………………..……………………………………………………………… (voice vote) 
 
7. 01-20-16 Public Hearing Minutes…………………………………………………………………………………………..…… (page 15) 
8. 01-20-16 Regular Meeting Minutes……………………………………………………………………………………………… (page 16) 
9. 02-03-16 Public Hearing Minutes……………………………………………………………………………………………..… (page 19) 
 
I. Consideration of Bids 
 
10. Council action on ITB 16-01 – City Paving Project……………………………………………..……… (voice vote)(page 20) 
 
J. Reports of Officers  
 
11. Mayor’s Report………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. (page 24) 
12. Manager’s Report 
 a. John Bitney, legislative lobbyist – Juneau update 
13. City Clerk’s Report 

Valentine’s Day 02-14-16 



 
K. Correspondence 
 
14. Table of contents referencing a separate document of correspondence available on City website……... (page 26) 
 
L. Ordinances and Resolutions 
 
15. Ordinance 1141……………………………………………………………………………………..………..…. (roll call vote)(page 28) 

An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the transfer of 
$1,300,000 from the general reserve fund to the Cordova center capital project fund #426, to 
provide a source of money for the completion of the Cordova Center – 2nd reading 

16. Resolution 02-16-07………………………………………………………………………………………..…… (roll call vote)(page 34) 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing amendment to the 
FY16 budget and authorizing expenditure of an amount not to exceed $18,500 for culvert 
relocation on property described as Lot 8, Forest Heights Subdivision, Cordova, Alaska 

17. Resolution 02-16-08…………………………………………………………………………………………….…. (voice vote)(page 37) 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska directing staff to draft the 
necessary charter changes that would allow code changes toward creation of an elected health 
services board, and for staff to present the charter changes timely enough for a ballot proposition 
at the March 2017 general election 

 
M. Unfinished Business 
 
N. New & Miscellaneous Business 
 
18. Council adoption of 2016 Land Disposal Maps………………………………………………………..… (voice vote)(page 39) 
19. Council action on proposals for old Museum/Library building…………………………..………… (voice vote)(page 55) 
20. Pending Agenda, Calendar …….……..….…….….…………………..………….…………………………………………. (page 119) 

Elected & Appointed Officials lists  
 
O. Audience Participation   
 
P. Council Comments 
 
21. Council Comments 
 
Q. Executive Session  
 
22. Council direction to Manager regarding negotiations with chosen City Attorney Firm 
23. City Council concerns surrounding employee performance (use e.s. reason #2 below) 
24. City Attorney advice to City Council regarding employee relations and management (use e.s. # 3 below) 
 
R. Adjournment 

 
 

 

Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the government; (2) Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person 

may request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) Matters involving 
consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure. 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
Full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net 

 

February 15, 2016 

http://www.sdheroes.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/02/presidents_day_WA.jpg
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


1



2



1 | P a g e  
 

 
Great Land Trust Shelter Cove Project 
Cordova City Council, February 3, 2016 

 
Introduction to Great Land Trust 
Great Land Trust is a nonprofit organization founded by Alaskans in 1995 to conserve lands and 
waters essential to our quality of life and the economic health of our communities. GLT works in 
voluntary partnership with landowners, agencies, communities and other partners throughout 
Southcentral Alaska with a focus on the Municipality of Anchorage, Mat-Su Borough, Prince 
William Sound and Kodiak. GLT’s focus is on land conservation for community benefit – we work 
to protect wetlands that provide clean drinking water, conserve habitat for salmon and other 
wildlife, and to build trails and establish access to the outdoors and open space. Great Land Trust 
is proud to be recognized as a nationally accredited land trust. The first land trust in Alaska to 
achieve this mark of distinction in land conservation, GLT was awarded accreditation in February 
of 2012. Accredited land trusts meet national quality standards for protecting important natural 
places and working lands forever. These land trusts demonstrate their commitment to excellence 
by adopting standards and practices, ethical and technical guidelines for the responsible operation 
of a land trust, and meeting the accreditation requirements drawn from them. 
 
Great Land Trust works in partnership with local and state government 
Great Land Trust only works with willing landowners and has completed over thirty projects 
ranging in size from 3 acres to 36,000 acres. GLT works in partnership with local and state 
government and has completed projects with the Municipality of Anchorage, the Mat-Su Borough, 
and the State of Alaska. GLT also has two active projects with the Kodiak Island Borough. 
 
The Shelter Cove project 
Great Land Trust was contacted by the Stern Family in 2015 about conservation options for their 
115-acre property on Fleming Creek near Shelter Cove in Cordova. Mr. Stern had recently passed 
away and his wife Lorna wanted to give back to the Cordova community that he loved while also 
conserving the habitat and open space the property afforded. This property contains hiking trails 
that are popular with the community. 
 
Donation to the City of Cordova 
After a site visit to the Shelter Cove property and consultation with City of Cordova staff and local 
non-profit partners, Great Land Trust and the Stern Family would like to propose donating the 
property to the City of Cordova for public use.  
 
Conservation easement held by Great Land Trust 
The Sterns have offered to donate the property to the City of Cordova subject to a conservation 
easement held by Great Land Trust. A conservation easement is a legal agreement between the 
landowner and a land trust that restricts the uses on the property to protect the conservation 
values. The details of the conservation easement would be determined together by the Stern 
Family, the City of Cordova and Great Land Trust. This scenario is one that has successfully led to 
projects with other local governments in Alaska and around the country.  

3



2 | P a g e  
 

 
Future uses 
The Sterns recognize that the City might need to use the property to benefit the community for 
purposes in addition to recreation. A communications tower and water supply utilities are 
examples of uses that are consistent with the Sterns’ intent.  
 
After the property is transferred to the City of Cordova, Great Land Trust will monitor the property 
annually to assure that the conservation values are intact. In addition to donating the property to 
the City of Cordova, the Sterns have pledged to donate funds for annual monitoring. The Copper 
River Watershed Project has offered to help organize volunteer property clean up events. 
 
Cordova planning documents 
To begin discussions about how the property could benefit the community, below are excerpts 
from Cordova planning documents.  
 
Excerpts from the City of Cordova 2008 Comprehensive Plan  

 
Excerpts from the Cordova Community Tourism Plan 

F. VISITOR INDUSTRY IMPROVEMENT STRATEGIES  
It is the intent of the City to develop a visitor industry in Cordova that fits the character of the community and retains the quality of 
life expected in the community by using the following strategies:  

 
 Enhance recreational and outdoor opportunities by:  

• Developing recreation and sport fishing areas.  
• Establishing a state park.  
• Encourage the development of more campgrounds and trails.  
• Develop other visitor facilities.  

 

PARKS AND RECREATION  
Goal: To provide and foster parks, programs, and facilities for all in pursuit of a healthy sustainable community.  

  

Attraction Enhancement, Strategy 6.  
Improve “edge of town” attractions, including wildlife and bird viewing, glacier viewing, trails 

4



3 | P a g e  
 

Draft Timeline 

 
 
 
Corporations, USFWS funds GLT to prioritize lands on and near Kodiak Island to protect species and services impacted by the oil spill.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Conservation easement 

• Conservation easement language will establish future uses of the property. A conservation easement is a legal agreement 
between the landowner and a land trust that restricts the uses on the property to protect the conservation values. The details of 
the conservation easement will be determined together by the Stern Family, the City of Cordova and Great Land Trust. 

 
**Due diligence activities 

• Phase I environmental site assessment to determine the condition of the property and any potential environmental hazards. 
• A Preliminary Title Commitment will be reviewed to assess the condition of the title of the property.  
• A survey will be conducted if necessary. 
• Volunteer work days will be organized to remove dilapidated structures. 
 

 

 

 

2015 2016/2017 

Sterns contacted Great Land 
Trust about their idea of 

donating the property to the 
City of Cordova with a 
conservation easement. 
Sterns and GLT meet to 

discuss their goals and ideas 
for potential future uses of 

the property. 

Sterns agree to 
donate the 

property and 
funds for annual 
monitoring. GLT 

Board gives 
conceptual 
approval 

Site visit and 
meetings with 

the City of 
Cordova staff. 

Cordova 
City Council 
introductory 
presentation. 

Request 
conceptual 

approval from 
Cordova City 

Council. 

Work with Sterns and 
City of Cordova to 
draft conservation 

easement*. Conduct 
due diligence such as 
Phase I environmental 

site assessment and 
title search**. 

Property clean 
up and baseline 
documentation 

report. 

Transfer property to the 
City of Cordova transfer 
conservation easement to 

GLT. 

Begin annual 
monitoring. 

5



4 | P a g e  
 

Property photos 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

6



Subject Property
City of Cordova Land
Private Land
State Land

Anadromous Water

Shelter Cove - Stern Property

0 2,5001,250
Feet

Cordova, AK   -   Approx. 112 acres

Data Sources:
ADNR (roads, ownership); ADFG (streams); ESRI (topo)
Projected Coordinate System: 
NAD 1983 State Plane Alaska 4 FIPS 5004 Feet
Map Created:  1.25.2016

This map was produced using the best
available data, but should not be used

in place of plat and survey maps.

0 1.50.75
Miles

¯
Property Locator

C
an

ne
ry

 R
oa

d

Shelter Cove
Property

Shelter Cove
Property

Cordova

O  r
 c

 a
   

I  n
 l  

e  t

Orca

C
op

pe
r R

iv
er

 H
ig

hw
ay

Eya
k L

ak
e R

oa
d

N
ew

 E
ng

la
nd

Eyak
Lake

7



Subject Property
City of Cordova Land
Private Land
State Land

Anadromous Water

Shelter Cove - Stern Property

0 2,5001,250
Feet

Cordova, AK   -   Approx. 112 acres

Data Sources:
ADNR (roads, ownership); ADFG (streams); AlaskaMapped (imagery); ESRI (topo)
Projected Coordinate System: 
NAD 1983 State Plane Alaska 4 FIPS 5004 Feet
Map Created:  1.25.2016

This map was produced using the best
available data, but should not be used

in place of plat and survey maps.

0 1.50.75
Miles

¯
Property Locator

C
an

ne
ry

 R
oa

d

Shelter Cove
Property

Shelter Cove
Property

Fleming Creek

Cordova

O  r
 c

 a
   

I  n
 l  

e  t

Orca

C
op

pe
r R

iv
er

 H
ig

hw
ay

Eya
k L

ak
e R

oa
d

N
ew

 E
ng

la
nd

Eyak
Lake

New
 E

ng
lan

d
Can

ne
ry

 R
oa

d

8



9



10



11



12



13



A memo from Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DATE:    February 04, 2016 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      Appointment of 2016 Election Board members 
 

 
Below are the names of the individuals who have been selected to serve on the election 
board for the 2016 General Election on March 1, 2016.   
 
Recommended motion: Move to concur with the Mayor’s appointment of the 2016 General 
Election board members as follows:    
 
Diana Rubio, as Chairperson 
Seawan Gehlbach 
Cathy Pegau 
Ann Schultz 
Sue Shellhorn 
Ruth Steele 
Judy Fulton 
Susan Bourgeois 
Tina Hammer 
 
Required action:  Majority voice vote or approval of the consent calendar. 
 
   

14



 

Minutes, Public Hearing 
January 20, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Public Hearing 
January 20, 2016 @ 6:00 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Minutes 

 

A. Call to order 
 

Mayor James Kacsh called the Council public hearing to order at 6:00 pm on January 20, 2016, in the Cordova 
Center Community Rooms. 
 

B. Roll call 
 

Present for roll call were Mayor James Kacsh and Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, Tom Bailer, 
Josh Hallquist, Dave Reggiani and James Burton. Council member Robert Beedle was absent. Also present were 
City Manager Randy Robertson and Deputy City Clerk Tina Hammer.  
 

C. Public hearing 
 

1. Ordinance 1139 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska amending Cordova Municipal Code Title 8 entitled 
“Health and Safety”  to adopt Chapter 8.40 entitled “Marijuana Regulation,” and designating the Cordova City 
Council as the City’s local regulatory authority on marijuana 
 
2. Ordinance 1140 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska amending Cordova Municipal Code Title 8 to add 
a new Chapter 8.44 to prohibit the extraction of tetrahydrocannabinol ("THC") or any cannabinoid by use of 
materials or methods deemed dangerous to public health and safety, unless otherwise permitted by law 
 

Mayor Kacsh opened the hearing up for public comment on either of the ordinances. Mayor Kacsh asked if there 
was any public comment and there was none. 
 

M/Burton S/Joyce to recess the public hearing at 6:03pm until 6:10 pm. 
Hearing no objection, the Public Hearing was recessed until 6:10 pm. 
 

At 6:10 pm Mayor Kacsh called the public hearing back to order and asked if there was any further public comment. 
There was none. 
 

D.  Adjournment 
 

M/Burton S/Hallquist to adjourn the Public Hearing 
Hearing no objection, the Public Hearing was adjourned at 6:11 pm 
 

Approved:  February 17, 2016 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

15



 

Reg Mtg Min 
January 20, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 

Regular City Council Meeting 
January 20, 2016 @ 6:15 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Minutes 

 
A. Call to order  
Mayor James Kacsh called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 6:15 pm on January 20, 2016 in the Cordova Center 
Community Rooms. 
 

B. Invocation and pledge of allegiance 
Mayor James Kacsh led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

C. Roll call 
Present for roll call were Mayor James Kacsh and Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, Tom Bailer, Josh 
Hallquist, David Reggiani and James Burton. Council member Robert Beedle was present via teleconference. Also present 
were City Manager Randy Robertson and Deputy City Clerk Tina Hammer.   
 

D. Approval of Regular Agenda  
M/Burton S/Joyce to approve the Regular Agenda.  
Vote on the motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Burton-yes; Joyce-yes; Beedle-yes; Hallquist-yes; Carpenter-yes; Reggiani-yes and 
Bailer-yes. Motion approved. 
 

E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  
Mayor Kacsh declared that regarding item 14 – he is a direct neighbor of Tony Rodrigues’.  
 

F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
1. Guest Speaker - none 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items  
Tony Rodrigues spoke regarding his letter to Council under correspondence on the agenda. He asked the Council to 
direct the City Manager to work toward a solution to an error made by a previous City staff. 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions   
Beedle said that Harbor Commission went over the master plan and the budget at their last meeting. He’d like the 
commission to start working on a strategic plan for the harbor.  
Carpenter said HSB should meet soon – she’d like to plan something for next week concerning a cash flow issue there. 
Council said that would actually be a City Council meeting to take action on a loan to CCMC. They would be discussing 
this at Pending Agenda. 
Bailer said Planning and Zoning met and the biggest item was that there were seven proposals for the old Library/Museum 
building – he said they discussed it, asked some questions of proposers and opted to refer it to staff and will see it again 
at their next meeting.  
Mayor Kacsh reported that he’d be meeting next Thursday for a noon lunch with representatives of boards and 
commissions.   
4. Student Council Representative Report – was not present 
 

G. Approval of Consent Calendar 
Mayor Kacsh declared the consent calendar before Council.  
5. Ordinance 1139 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska amending Cordova Municipal Code 
Title 8 entitled “Health and Safety”  to adopt Chapter 8.40 entitled “Marijuana Regulation,” and designating the Cordova 
City Council as the City’s local regulatory authority on marijuana – 2nd reading 
6. Ordinance 1140 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska amending Cordova Municipal Code 
Title 8 to add a new Chapter 8.44 to prohibit the extraction of tetrahydrocannabinol ("THC") or any cannabinoid by use 
of materials or methods deemed dangerous to public health and safety, unless otherwise permitted by law – 2nd reading 
7. Resolution 01-16-03 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, approving the license for a mobile 
restaurant 
8. Resolution 01-16-04 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, approving the site plan of Ocean 
Beauty Seafoods, LLC to construct a 5,400 square foot fish oil and fish meal production facility on Lot 3A, Block 1, 

16



 

Reg Mtg Min 
January 20, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

Cordova Industrial Plant 
9. Resolution 01-16-05 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, approving the site plan of Alpine 
Diesel to construct an 8,640 square foot vessel maintenance building on a portion of Tract 1A, Ocean Dock Subdivision 
 

Vote on the consent calendar: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Beedle-yes; Joyce-yes; Hallquist-yes; Bailer-yes; Carpenter-yes; Burton-yes 
and Reggiani-yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 

H. Approval of Minutes  
M/Burton S/Bailer to approve the minutes. 
10. 1-6-16 Public Hearing Minutes 
Vote on the motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Joyce-yes; Bailer-yes; Burton-yes; Beedle-yes; Reggiani-yes; Hallquist-yes and 
Carpenter-yes. Motion approved. 
 

I. Consideration of Bids - none 
 

J. Reports of Officers  
11. Mayor’s Report – Mayor Kacsh said he sent a letter to ADF&G commissioner regarding the test fishery for Tanner 
Crab.  
12. Manager’s Report – Robertson said that Senator Stevens office contacted him about coming to Cordova for a visit, 
probably early in the session preferably on a Friday.  
13. City Clerk’s Report – Deputy Clerk Hammer said she has been busy inputting 2016 property assessments into the 
database. 
 

K. Correspondence 
14. 01-06-16 Rodrigues letter in re Culvert in Forest Heights Subdivision 
Joyce said he’d like to see the planning department provide a report at the next meeting with some background information 
on this issue. Robertson said we will be ready to do that, he was wanting to hear from Council as to whether that was the 
will of the council versus letting the City staff handle it. Bailer said he would like to see this resolved so a house would get 
built there. Hallquist said he agreed with Bailer.  
 

L. Ordinances and Resolutions - none 
 

M. Unfinished Business - none 
 

N. New & Miscellaneous Business 
15. Presentations by Legal firms that have responded to the City’s RFP for legal services 
 a. Levesque Law Group – Joe Levesque 
 b. Landye Bennett Blumstein – Matt Mead and Kim Dunn 
 c. Hoffman & Blasco – Bob Blasco and Megan Costello 
 d. Boyd Chandler Falconer – Brooks Chandler 
  e. Birch Horton Bittner & Cherot – Holly Wells, Katie Davies, David Gross, Adam Cook and Tom Klinkner 
   (via teleconference) 
Each firm had an attorney(s) speak – present his/their proposals that they had put in as a response to the City’s RFP for 
legal services. After 20 – 30 minutes for each presentation, council and the City Manager also had a few questions for each 
attorney and/or group of attorneys.  
16. Pending Agenda, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials list 
Council scheduled a special meeting for Wednesday January 27 at 7pm - hospital needed a financial infusion to handle 
short term financial needs. Bailer asked what the next step was for Council regarding these law firms and a decision. Mayor 
Kacsh said he thought council might opt to have an executive session tonight to begin that discussion. 
 

O. Audience Participation - none 
 

P. Council Comments 
17. Council Comments 
Hallquist thanked the attorneys who came to Cordova and presented to Council tonight. 
Bailer, Reggiani, Carpenter and Joyce all echoed those comments. 

17



 

Reg Mtg Min 
January 20, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

Joyce further commented that he had been to a P&Z commission special meeting and it became clear to him that Council 
is tasking P&Z with items way outside what charter and code has given them as far as roles and responsibilities. He believes 
that the criteria they are using should be looked at and reevaluated.  
 

Q. Executive Session  
M/Bailer S/Burton to go into an executive session to discuss matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly 
have an adverse effect on the finances of the government, specifically the legal presentations made this evening and 
contractual matters. 
Vote on motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Carpenter-yes; Hallquist-yes; Bailer-yes; Beedle-yes; Burton-yes; Reggiani-yes and Joyce-
yes. Motion was approved. 
Hearing no objection, Mayor Kacsh called for a five minute recess at 8:52 pm. 
Council was back in session at 8:57 pm. 
Council entered executive session at 8:57 pm and was back in regular session at 10:15 pm.  
 

R. Adjournment 
M/Bailer S/Hallquist to adjourn.  
Hearing no objections the meeting was adjourned at 10:15 pm. 
 
Approved: February 17, 2016    
 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

18



 

Minutes, Public Hearing 
February 3, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Public Hearing 
February 3, 2016 @ 6:45 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Minutes 

 

A. Call to order 
 

Mayor James Kacsh called the Council public hearing to order at 6:45 pm on February 3, 2016, in the Cordova 
Center Community Rooms. 
 

B. Roll call 
 

Present for roll call were Mayor James Kacsh and Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tom Bailer, Josh Hallquist, 
and James Burton. Council members Tim Joyce and David Reggiani were present via teleconference. Council 
member Robert Beedle was absent. Also present were City Manager Randy Robertson and City Clerk Susan 
Bourgeois.  
 

C. Public hearing 
 

1. Ordinance 1141 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the transfer of $1,300,000 from the 
general reserve fund to the Cordova center capital project fund #426, to provide a source of money for the 
completion of the Cordova Center 
 

Mayor Kacsh opened the hearing up for public comment on ordinance 1141. Mayor Kacsh asked if there was any 
public comment and there was none. 
 

M/Burton S/Carpenter to recess the public hearing at 6:46 pm until 6:55 pm. 
Hearing no objection, the Public Hearing was recessed until 6:55 pm. 
 

At 6:55 pm Mayor Kacsh called the public hearing back to order and asked if there was any further public comment. 
There was none. 
 

D.  Adjournment 
 

M/Burton S/Bailer to adjourn the Public Hearing 
Hearing no objection, the Public Hearing was adjourned at 6:56 pm 
 

Approved:  February 17, 2016 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

19



Swq12xxxxxxxxxx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
         February 17, 2016 

 
Memo to City Council 
 
Re:     ITB #16-01 Cordova City Streets Improvements - $2M Street Paving Bond 
 
CMC 5.12.040 “Council approval of contracts”: 

No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than twenty-five 
thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth the 
following essential terms of the contract: 
 

A. The identity of the contractor:   Eagle Contracting Corp, PO Box 1128, Cordova, AK 
B. The contract price:     not to exceed $1,109,300 for Base Bid, $518,552 for Additive Alternate 

01, making a combined total of $1,627,852 
C. The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the contract:  

Contractor shall construct 2,600 linear feet of new hot mix asphalt 2-lane street surface, drainage 
improvements, and associated work as specified in ITB#16-01 dated 08Jan2016 and as guided by 
the City’s 2015 Roads Priority List dated 20Sep2014. 

D. The time for performance under the contract:  start on/about 01April2016 and conclude not 
later than 30Sep2016. 

 
Two bids were received on 05Feb16.  Wilson Construction of Cordova bid the Base Bid at $1,132,414.70 
and Eagle Contracting Corp of Cordova bid the Base Bid at $1,109,300.  The attached Bid Tabulation 
shows these numbers and the two Additive Alternates and the one Deductive Alternate.  There is 
insufficient funding to consider awarding Additive Alternate 02. 
 
The proposed bids have been reviewed by the City Engineer and the consulting design firm, DOWL. Both 
concur recommending Eagle’s selection to the City Council. Eagle and the City of Cordova have enjoyed a 
long and mutually respective professional relationship. In projects ranging from portions of the Phase II 
Cordova Center to the Baler upgrades.  
 
I recommend the City Manager be authorized by Council to negotiate a contract with Eagle Contracting 
Corp to provide construction contracting services as set forth in ITB#16-01 for a total contract price not to 
exceed $1,627,852.00, per the attached Fiscal Note. 
   
Recommended action: Voice Vote.   “I move to direct the City Manager to negotiate a contract with Eagle 
Contracting Corporation, Cordova, AK to provide construction contracting services per ITB#16-01 for a 
sum not to exceed one million, six hundred twenty-seven thousand dollars, eight hundred fifty-two dollars 
and zero cents ($1,627,852.00), per the attached Fiscal Note.” 
 
 
Randy Robertson  
City Manager 

CITY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 
Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 
 
 
  

20

mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


City of Cordova 
 Fiscal Note 
 
 
 
 
Date: 02/10/2016    Agenda Date:  02/17/2016 

Amount:  $1,627,852.00 Subject:  Eagle Contracting Corp Paving and Drainage Work per 
ITB#16-01 within the $2M Paving Bond 

Fiscal Impact:  Yes     

Budgeted:   Yes, $1,627,852.00   Resolution/Ordinance #      n/a 

From Account#:    Stand Alone Bond 

To Account#:         Stand Alone Bond 

Prepared by:  R. Rogers 

 
 
 
 
Expenditures FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 
Contractual $1,627,852.00   
Supplies    
Equipment      
Travel    
Land/Structure    
Grants    
    
 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 
Revenue    
    
Funding Source FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 
General Fund Reserve     
(budgeted annually)    
$2M Bond Street Paving (November 2014) $1,627,852.00   

 
Additional Information 
 
 
This is an 8 month contract to provide horizontal construction contracting services for drainage, 
paving and associated work per ITB#16-01 at Nicholoff Way, Harbor Loop Road, and part of 
Railroad Avenue. 

21



Cordova City Streets Improvements

ITB #16‐01

Bid Results

February 5, 2016

Base Bid

PAY ITEM

NO.

1505.1

1550.1

1570.1

2202.1

2202.3

2204.1

2402.1

2501.1

2501.2

2501.3

2501.4

2502.1

2502.2

2602.1

2607.1

2702.1

2715.1

2716.1

2717.1

2801.1

2801.2

2806.1

2807.1

3303.1

3304.1

PAY ITEM

NO.

1505.1A

1550.1A

1570.1A

2202.1A

2202.2A

2204.2A

2402.1A

2501.1A

2501.2A

2502.3A

2502.1A

2502.4A

2602.1A

2603.1A

2607.1A

2702.1A

2709.1A

2709.1A

2710.1A

2715.1A

2716.1A

2717.1A

2718.1A

2720.1A

2801.1A

2801.2A

2806.1A

3302.1A

3303.1A

3303.2A

3303.3A

3303.4A

3304.1A

3304.2A

$576,031.80TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE No. 1: TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE No. 1: 

TOTAL BASE BID:  TOTAL BASE BID: 

00 LUMP SUM $49,029 00

$1,132,414.70

Regrade Existing Base Course Lump Sum All Req'd LUMP SUM $9,000

$8 75 $1,662 50

$11 10 $1,665 00

$158 00 $17,380 00

$63 00 $1,008 00

$58 40 $27,740 00

$53 00 $43,619 00

$4 80 $13,248 00

$1,965 00 $1,965 00

$413 00 $179,655 00

$469 00 $30,485 00

LUMP SUM $4,770 00

LUMP SUM $690 00

$5,040 00 $10,080 00

$69 15 $6,915 00

LUMP SUM $2,180 00

$150 00 $2,400 00

$2,460 00 $2,460 00

LUMP SUM $23,000 00

$120 00 $1,200 00

$8,480 00 $8,480 00

$155 00 $1,550 00

$4,390 00 $4,390 00

$2,450 00 $12,250 00

$10,350 00 $10,350 00

$5,540 00 $22,160 00

$38 75 $7,750 00

$136 60 $27,046 80

$85 00 $46,835 00

$1,370 00 $8,220 00

$18,367 50

LUMP SUM $6,210 00

$13,000 00

LUMP SUM $4,700 00

AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS DOLLARS CENTS

LUMP SUM $12,600 00

UNIT PRICE

LUMP SUM

$39 50

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

$23,750

$41,150

$9,900

$912

$1,900

$3,000

$5,000

$195,750

$33,280

$11,040

$700

$1,600

$100

$8,000

$1,000

$1,000

$2,000

$1,000

$5,000

$8,000

$600

$11,000

$1,000

$38,570

$6,000

$8,000

$19,800

$3,800

$16,400

00

00

00

00

00

$30,000

$10,000

$5,000

$9,300

$5,000

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

SUM

SUM

00

SUM

00

00

00

SUM

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

90

57

10

20

SUM

SUM

SUM

00

SUM

00

450

512

4

700

50

50

80

LUMP

LUMP

1000

LUMP

8000

60

LUMP

100

100

100

40

100

3800

4100

1000

1000

190

150

All Req'd LUMP

LUMP

LUMP

20

LUMP

70

1000

2,760

1

475

823

110

16

All Req'd

2

All Req'd

435

65

All Req'd

10

16

1

100

All Req'd

1

4

1

5

1

10

LF

SY

All Req'd

All Req'd

465

All Req'd

551

6

200

198

SY

Each

LF

LF

SY

SY

Lump Sum

Each

Lump Sum

Ton

Ton

Lump Sum

CY

MH

SU

LF

Lump Sum

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Bds

CENTS

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

CY

Lump Sum

00

00

00

00

Remove Curb and Gutter

Remove Concrete Sidewalk

Additive Alternate No. 1

PAY

UNIT

CY

Each

LF

LF

Remove Existing Asphalt Surfacing

Concrete Area Drain

Valley Gutter, Type III

Curb and Gutter, Type I

Concrete Sidewalk, 4 and 6 Inches Thick

Detectable Tile

Storm Structure Removal

Sign Assembly

Painted Traffic Markings

A.C. Pavement, Type II‐A, Class B

A.C. Pavement for Sidewalks and Driveways

Construction Surveying

Topsoil

Topsoil Finish Grading

Seeding, Hydraulic Method, Type III

6‐Inch Underdrain

Remove and Dispose of Culvert Pipe

Storm Drain Manhole, Type I

Catch Basin, Type III

Reconstruct Existing Catch Basin

Replace Valve Box

Relocate Existing Fire Hydrant

Pipe Insulation

Excavation

Sideslopes and Ditch Grading

2‐Inch Minus Shot Rock w/Base Course

Adjust Sanitary Sewer Manhole to Grade

4 & 6‐Inch PVC Pipe Culvert

12‐Inch CPP Pipe Culvert

35 $2,611 70

APPROX.

QUANTITY

UNIT PRICE

$4 40 $18,656 00

$48 00 $121,104 00

$469 00 $105,525 00

$4 80 $16,032 00

$532,770 00$413 00

LUMP SUM $10,155 00

LUMP SUM $6,705 00

LUMP SUM $31,000 00

$69 15 $6,915 00

$650 00 $11,700 00

$155 00 $2,325 00

$5,532 00 $38,724 00

$5,796 00 $23,184 00

$138 70 $6,935 00

$798 00 $3,990 00

$38 75 $7,750 00

$136 60 $35,516 00

$35 00 $8,400 00

$1,370 00 $12,330 00

LUMP SUM $10,020 00

$40 50 $7,938 00

LUMP SUM $32,900 00

LUMP SUM $30,200 00

Eagle Contracting Corporation Wilson Construction, Inc.

UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS DOLLARS CENTS

00

$518,552.00

Mobilization

Traffic Control

Erosion and Sediment Control

PAY ITEM DESCRIPTION
AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS DOLLARS

Eagle Contracting Corporation Wilson Construction, Inc.

$1,109,300.00

00 $14Remove Valley Gutter LF 182 $5 00 $910

00

Valley Gutter, Type III LF 2,523 $50 00 $126,150 00

Remove Existing Chip Seal Surfacing SY 4,240 $4 00 $16,960

00

Remove Existing Asphalt Surfacing SY 3,340 $4 00 $13,360 00

A.C. Pavement for Sidewalk and Driveways Ton 225 $512 00 $115,200

00A.C. Pavement, Type II‐A, Class B Ton 1,290 $450 00 $580,500

00

Storm Structure Removal Lump Sum All Req'd LUMP SUM $1,000 00

Remove and Dispose of Culvert Pipe Lump Sum All Req'd LUMP SUM $2,000

00

6‐Inch Underdrain LF 100 $100 00 $10,000 00

Construction Surveying Lump Sum All Req'd LUMP SUM $29,000

00

Pipe Insulation Bds 15 $60 00 $900 00

Adjust Valve Box to Grade Each 18 $400 00 $7,200

00

Catch Basin, Type IV Each 4 $4,100 00 $16,400 00

Catch Basin, Type III Each 7 $3,800 00 $26,600

00

CPP Saddle Tee Each 5 $400 00 $2,000 00

18‐Inch CPP Pipe Culvert LF 50 $120 00 $6,000

00

12‐Inch CPP Pipe Culvert LF 260 $100 00 $26,000 00

4 & 6‐Inch PVC Pipe Culvert LF 200 $40 00 $8,000

00

Adjust Sanitary Manhole to Grade Each 9 $1,000 00 $9,000 00

Base Course, Grading D‐1 Ton 240 $80 00 $19,200

00

Excavation CY 196 $20 00 $3,920 00

Erosion and Sediment Control Lump Sum All Req'd LUMP SUM $10,000

00

Taffic Control Lump Sum All Req'd LUMP SUM $20,000 00

Mobilization Lump Sum All Req'd LUMP SUM $50,000

AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS DOLLARS CENTS

PAY

UNIT

APPROX.

QUANTITY

UNIT PRICE
PAY ITEM DESCRIPTION

1
22



Cordova City Streets Improvements

ITB #16‐01

Bid Results

February 5, 2016

PAY ITEM

NO.

3303.5D Concrete Island

                                                                                              

PAY ITEM

NO.

1505.1B

1550.1B

1570.1B

2202.1B

2202.2B

2204.2B

2402.1B

2501.1B

2501.2B

2501.4B

2502.1B

2502.4B

2602.1B

2607.1B

2702.1B

2715.1B

2716.1B

2717.1B

2801.1B

2801.2B

2806.1B

3302.1B

3303.1B

                                                                                                   $261,879.70

TOTAL DEDUCTIVE ALTERNATE No. 1A: $8,890.00TOTAL DEDUCTIVE ALTERNATE No. 1A:$4,000.00

$211,280.00TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE No. 2:  TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE No. 2:

Eagle Contracting Corporation Wilson Construction, Inc.

Eagle Contracting Corporation Wilson Construction, Inc.

1965 00 $1,965 00

59 00 $34,574 00

469 00 $16,415 00

4 80 $4,536 00

00

413 00 $66,080 00

LUMP SUM $1,800

LUMP SUM $690 00

LUMP SUM $13,800 00

69 15 $6,915 00

650 00 $1,300 00

155 00 $1,550 00

5540 00 $16,620 00

4390 00 $4,390 00

136 60 $12,703 80

798 00 $1,596 00

1370 00 $1,370 00

38 75 $7,750 00

LUMP SUM $6,210 00

110 40 $22,742 40

LUMP SUM $1,360 00

37 50 $9,112 50

LUMP SUM $7,200 00

LUMP SUM $21,200 00

SUM $8,890 00

UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS DOLLARS CENTS

UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS DOLLARS CENTS

A.C. Pavement, Type II‐A, Class B

A.C. Pavement for Sidewalks and Driveways

Remove Existing Asphalt Surfacing

Concrete Area Drain

Valley Gutter, Type III

Pipe Insulation

Construction Surveying

6‐Inch Underdrain

Remove and Dispose of Culvert Pipe

Storm Structure Removal

4 & 6‐Inch PVC Pipe Culvert

12‐Inch CPP Pipe Culvert

CPP Saddle Tee

Catch Basin, Type III

Reconstruct Existing Catch Basin

Adjust Valve Box to Grade

SY

Each

LF

Mobilization

Traffic Control

Erosion and Sediment Control

Excavation

Sideslopes and Ditch Grading

2‐Inch Minus Shot Rock w/Base Course

Adjust Sanitary Sewer Manhole to Grade

LF

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Ton

Ton

Each

Each

Each

Each

Bds

Lump Sum

586

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

Lump Sum

CY

Lump Sum

CY

Each

LF

LF

All Req'd

160

35

945

1

1

2

10

All Req'd

100

All Req'd

206

1

200

93

2

3

450

512

4

700

50

All Req'd

All Req'd

All Req'd

243

All Req'd

60

LUMP

70

LUMP

LUMP

40

100

500

4100

1000

500

00

00

00

LUMP

LUMP

LUMP

20

LUMP

70

1000

00

SUM

SUM

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

SUM

$29,300

SUM

SUM

SUM

00

SUM

00

00

00

00

$1,000

$72,000

$17,920

$3,780

$700

$1,000

$1,000

$600

$5,100

$7,000

$1,000

$14,420

$1,000

$8,000

$9,300

$1,000

$12,300

00

00

00

00

00

$10,000

$5,000

$2,000

$4,860

$3,000

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS

$4,000 00

00

APPROX.

QUANTITY

All Req'd

UNIT PRICE

DOLLARS

LUMP

CENTS

SUM

UNIT PRICE

DOLLARS CENTS

AMOUNT

DOLLARS CENTS

Deductive Alternate No. 1A

Deductive Alternate No. 2

PAY ITEM DESCRIPTION
PAY

UNIT

APPROX.

QUANTITY

PAY

UNIT

Lump Sum LUMP

PAY ITEM DESCRIPTION

2
23



Notes from 1/28/16 Lunch with representatives of Boards and Commissions 

 

Planning & Zoning 

 Discussed set backs and access to neighboring property with Alpine Diesel lease. 

 Alaska State Troopers request to lease space in old City Hall building 

 Discussed process with old Museum & Library property and parking 

 Had a question from other boards on a “Main Street Plan” 

 

School Board 

 Discussed keeping up with this legislative session and updates from Juneau 

 Sending School Board reps to Juneau soon 

 Working on Union negotiations 

 Hiring a new Business Manager for District 

 

Harbor 

 Ready for a Survey of the South Harbor 

 Discussed the USFS dock 

 Discussed completion of the Master Plan for the Harbor 

 

Parks & Recreation 

 Bazaar to remain in Cordova Center for 2016.  With a year to plan and learn from this last event, 
the next Bazaar will be even better. 

 Working on Iceworm Events programming 

 Discussed Pool programming and funding issues and maintenance of the facility 

 P&R is hosting Dress to Kill and funding from that event is to support programming for kids at 
the Pool this year. 

 Discussed including students from both Mt Eccles and CHS be part of the P&R Board meetings 

 Parks and Recreation will have Summer Camp programming this year 

 

24



Library 

 Briefing on Pokeman Club 

 Friends of the Library recently granted Non-Profit status 

 Discussed issues with unattented children at the Library 

 Discussed issues with the Candy Machine and the need for additional garbage cans in the 
entrance to Cordova Center 

 

Fish Advisory 

 Would like to have board review proposals to next BOF and advise Council of supporting 
proposals by resolution. 

 Discussed having board create proposals for City to submit to BOF if needed. 

 

 

We also had a great presentation from Rich Rogers on Public Works future and ongoing projects. 

Thank you to Susan and the rest of City Staff who provided a fantastic lunch for us. 

Next Luncheon is scheduled for Thursday 2/25/16 

25



Table of Contents 
 correspondence received for 02-17-16 Council packet inclusion are on the City website at  

http://www.cityofcordova.net/government/mayor-council/council-meetings  
02-17-16 Regular Meeting Packet Correspondence 

hard copies available upon request of the City Clerk cityclerk@cityofcordova.net 
 
Letter /email from & concerning                page 
1. B. Reynolds support Seamans………………………………………………………………………….... 1 
2. J. Reynolds support Seamans…………………………………………………………………….……… 2 
3. D. Gilman support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………….……. 3 
4. T. Bartley support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………….……. 5 
5. McCalvy support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………………….... 7 
6. S. Graves support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………..………. 9 
7. C. Hoover support Pioneer Square……………………………………………….………………….…. 10 
8. L. Balint support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………………….. 11 
9. S. Joekay support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………………. 13 
10. K. Stone support Pioneer Square……………………………………………….…………..…………. 14 
11. M. Cason support Seamans……………………………………………………….………..…………. 15 
12. D. Janka support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………………. 16 
13. G. Hamm support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………..………. 17 
14. J. Carter support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………………. 18 
15. M. McNeil support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………………. 19 
16. C. Roesbury support Pioneer Square…………………………………………….……………………. 20 
17. S. Joekay support Seamans……………………………………………………….………………..…. 21 
18. S. Madison support Seamans………………………………………...………………….……………. 22 
19. L. Borer support Seamans………………………………………………………….…………………. 23 
20. R. Madison support Pioneer Square……………………………………….……….…………………. 25 
21. B. Reynolds support Seamans………………………………………………..………….……………. 26 
22. J. Reynolds support Seamans……………………………………………………...…….……………. 27 
23. A. Burton support Seamans………………………………………………………...…………………. 28 
24. B. Jewell support Seamans……………………………………………………….…...………………. 29 
25. B. Ladd support Seamans……………………………………………………….……….……………. 30 
26. B. Simpler support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………………. 31 
27. B. W. support Seamans……………………………………………………….………………………. 32 
28. C. Bolin support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………………. 33 
29. C. Roesbury support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………..…. 34 
30. C. Wade support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………………. 35 
31. D. Eike support Seamans………………………………………….……………….…………………. 36 
32. D. McIntosh support Seamans…………………………………….………………….………………. 37 
33. D. Petit support Seamans…………………………………………….…………….…………………. 38 
34. D. Vedder support Seamans………………………………………….…………….…………………. 39 
35. Dillon support Seamans…………………………………………………...……….…………………. 40 
36. Dillon petition of support Seamans…………………………………………..…….…………………. 47 
37. E. Rubio support Seamans……………………………………………………...….…………………. 48 
38. G. Chung support Seamans……………………………………………………..….…………………. 49 
39. G. LoForte support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………………. 50 
40. J. Field support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………………..…. 51 

26

http://www.cityofcordova.net/government/mayor-council/council-meetings
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


41. J. Jensen support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………...………. 52 
42. J. Nuzzi support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………….………. 53 
43. J. Wiese support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………………. 54 
44. K. Gialopsos support Seamans…………………………………………………………..……………. 55 
45. Long support Seamans……………………………………………………….……….………………. 56 
46. M. Adams support Seamans……………………………………………………….….………………. 57 
47. M. Ladd support Seamans……………………………………………………….……………………. 58 
48. M. W. support Seamans……………………………………………………….……...………………. 59 
49. P. Brockert support Seamans……………………………………………………….…...……………. 60 
50. PJ Jensen support Seamans……………………………………………………….……..……………. 61 
51. R. Bullis support Seamans……………………………………………………….…………...………. 62 
52. R. Plant support Seamans……………………………………………………….………….…………. 63 
53. S. Balint support Seamans………………………………………………………….…………………. 64 
54. S. Songer support Seamans………………………………………………..……….…………………. 65 
55. T. Dillon support Seamans……………………………………………...………….…………………. 66 
56. Ty. Dillon support Seamans……………………………………….……………….…………………. 67 
57. W. Dadulla support Seamans……………………………………...……………….…………………. 68 
58. B. Chapek support Seamans…………………………………………………………………………... 69 
59. Dillon letter regarding Seamans Proposal………………………………………..…………………… 70 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



A Memo from Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DATE:    February 5, 2016 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council and the public 
 
SUBJECT:      Ordinance 1141 
 

 
On first reading of this ordinance at the February 3, 2016 regular meeting, Council made a minor 
amendment to take one line out of one of the whereas’. This did not qualify as a substantial change 
requiring another first reading. Tonight this is before council for a second reading (also requiring 
a public hearing) and attached is the charter and code referring to moving money from the 
permanent fund.  
 
Required action:  Majority roll call vote on second reading. Requires seven yes votes – Mayor can 
vote if there are six yes votes of council. 
 

28



2/5/2016 4:33 PM 

Memo		 	
TO: Randy Robertson, City Manager; Jon Stavig, Finance Director 
FROM: Rich Rogers, Public Works Director; Cathy Sherman, Information Services Director; Weston 
Bennett, Facility Manager 
RE:  Cordova Center Financials 
Date:  January 25, 2016 
 
An update on efforts to ‘close out’ the Cordova Center Construction accounting.   
Dawson Construction  
 Pay Request #14       $377K 
 Balance to Finish       $215K 
 COP’s Not Yet Approved      $206K 
Other     

FF&E         $   6K 
MRV         $  40K 
1% for Art        $113K 
Cistern        $  45K 
Southwest Stairs       $  40K 

Total      $1,042,000 
 
Previous Cordova Center costs  

Applied to line of credit (Pay Request #10)   $750K 
Paid from general fund reserve (Remainder Pay Request #10)$  40K 
Paid from general fund reserve (Pay Request #11)  $303K 
Paid from general fund reserve (Pay Request #12)  $298K 
Paid from general fund reserve (Pay Request #13)  $169K 

Total      $1,560,000 
Funding    

Capital Campaign Cash      $486K 
 Rasmuson Match       $750K 

Total      $1,236,000 
  

Outstanding Payments      $1,042,000 
 Repayments to the line of credit and central treasury  $1,560,000 

Total of outstanding and repayments    $2,602,000 
  
Cash Funding as of 1.25.2016      $1,236,000 
  
Amount outstanding        $1,366,000 
 

29



 

 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

ORDINANCE 1141 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF $1,300,000 FROM THE GENERAL RESERVE FUND 
TO THE CORDOVA CENTER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND #426, TO PROVIDE A SOURCE 

OF MONEY FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE CORDOVA CENTER 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, has adopted the City Budget and 
appropriated funds for FY16 for the period of January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the interfund transfers pursuant to this Ordinance are for providing a source of 
money to pay for the completion of the Cordova Center Capital Project Fund #426, in the amount of 
$1.3M, which excludes money from grant sources; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance provides for an interfund transfer of $1.3M to Fund #426, which is 
the amount identified by the Cordova Center Project Team; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Dawson Construction LLC., contract with the City of Cordova was capped at 
$9.997M; and  
 
 WHEREAS, construction change orders of nearly $500K associated with the Center’s 
construction for replacement of windows, addition of fire dampeners, recessed slabs, and other items 
were necessary; and 
 
 WHEREAS, nearly $500K in expenses for the Center’s audio-visual and information technology 
equipment and installation as well as furniture and art related expenses which  were not connected to the 
actual construction of the Center were incurred; and 
 
 WHEREAS, outstanding future costs to repair the cistern and complete exterior stairs are 
estimated to be between $80K and $100K; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City will restore General Reserve Funds used for this effort by placing money 
from the Cordova Center Capital Campaign and fees associated with the use of the Cordova Center back 
into the General Reserve Fund until repayment is complete; and  
 
 WHEREAS, proceeds from the sale of the ‘old museum and library’ facility will be directly 
placed in the General Reserve Fund as partial restitution for this action.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED THAT the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, hereby authorizes the transfer of $1,300,000 from the General Reserve Fund into the Cordova 
Center Capital Project Fund #426, to provide a source of money for the completion of the Cordova 
Center in fiscal year 2016.  
 

This ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of 

Ord. 1141 
Page 1 of 2 

30



 

Cordova, Alaska and published in the Cordova Times, a newspaper of general circulation, within ten 
(10) days of its passage. 

 
1st reading and Public Hearing:   February 3, 2016 
2nd reading and Public Hearing:  February 17, 2016   
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2016.  
 

       ______________________________ 
       Jim Kacsh, Mayor   
      
      ATTEST: 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

Ord. 1141 
Page 2 of 2 

31



Charter regarding Permanent Fund 

Section - 5-22.  

There shall be established as a separate fund within the finances of the City of Cordova to be known as Cordova General 
Reserve Fund and administered by city code, charter and state laws. The purpose for establishment of the fund is to provide for 
a continuing source of funding for capital and operating expenses for the city. The council may not consider any revenue from 
the fund as anticipated revenue for the purpose of funding operating expenses when preparing and approving the budget. The 
establishment of the fund is intended to assist in minimizing the tax burden to the citizens of Cordova, and preserve in trust 
assets of the city for the benefit of present and future generations of Cordova residents. The council may, from time to time, 
make deposits to the fund in the same manner as it makes other appropriations. Any funds received by the city from any source 
may be deposited into the fund. The fund principal, once established, shall be appropriated only by ordinance. An ordinance to 
appropriate funds from the principal of the Cordova General Reserve Fund shall require the favorable roll call vote of all seven 
city council members, or six city council members and the mayor, the results to be entered into the journal. The mayor shall be 
allowed to vote only if exactly six (6) council members vote in favor of any such ordinance.  

Code regarding Permanent Fund 

Chapter 5.44 - CORDOVA GENERAL RESERVE FUND  

5.44.010 - Cordova general reserve fund established.  

5.44.020 - Purpose.  

5.44.030 - Deposits to the fund.  

5.44.040 - Management of fund.  

5.44.050 - Income and distribution.  

5.44.060 - Principal.  

Chapter 5.44 - CORDOVA GENERAL RESERVE FUND  

Sections:  

5.44.010 - Cordova general reserve fund established.  

There is established as a separate fund within the finances of the city a fund to be known as the Cordova general reserve 
fund (hereinafter referred to as "the fund"). The Cordova general reserve fund is also referred to as the "city permanent fund." 
The fund shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.  

(Ord. 789 (part), 1997: Ord. 615 § 1, 1987). 

5.44.020 - Purpose.  

The purpose for establishment of the fund is to provide a continuing source of funding for the capital and operating 
expenses of the city. The council may not consider any revenue from the Cordova general reserve fund as anticipated revenues 
for the purpose of funding operating expenses when approving the budget. The establishment of the fund is intended to assist in 
minimizing the tax burden to the citizens of Cordova, and preserve in trust assets of the city for the benefit of present and future 
generations of Cordova residents.  

(Ord. 789 (part), 1997: Ord. 615 § 2, 1987). 

32

https://www.municode.com/library/ak/cordova/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT5REFI_CH5.44COGEREFU
https://www.municode.com/library/ak/cordova/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT5REFI_CH5.44COGEREFU_5.44.010COGEREFUES


5.44.030 - Deposits to the fund.  

The council may, from time to time, make deposits to the fund in the same manner as it makes other appropriations. Any 
funds received by the city from any source may be deposited into the fund; provided, however, it shall be the policy of the city 
council that any windfall funds from legal settlements received by the city shall be deposited into the fund to fulfill the purpose 
as set forth in Section 5.44.020.  

(Ord. 702 (part), 1992: Ord. 615 § 3, 1987). 

5.44.040 - Management of fund.  

An investment policy consistent with the Prudent Investor Act shall be adopted by the city council by resolution, and may 
be amended as necessary by resolution. The city treasurer shall follow the investment policy adopted by the city council for 
investment and management of amounts in the fund.  

(Ord. 615 § 4, 1987). 

(Ord. No. 1059, § 1, 11-4-2009) 

5.44.050 - Income and distribution.  

A.  In conjunction with the audit of the city's financial statements each year, the city treasurer shall prepare a report for the 
city council which shows, as of the last day of the preceding fiscal year, the nature of each outstanding investment, including 
the purchase date, purchase price, and estimated net yield rate at the time of purchase, and the income earned from each 
investment from the initial date of purchase to the date of the report. The report shall be delivered to the city council in 
conjunction with the audited financial statements.  
B.  In conjunction with audit of the city's financial statements each year, the net income of the fund shall be determined as of 
the last day of the preceding fiscal year in accordance with this section and utilizing generally accepted accounting 
principles. The city treasurer shall report such determination to the city council in conjunction with delivery of the audited 
financial statements.  
C.  For the purposes of determining the net income of the fund, "net income" means the total income yielded from investment 
of the principal of the fund for the preceding fiscal year, less any amounts needed;  

1.  To reimburse the fund principal in the event a transaction results in an actual dollar loss in principal;  
2.  To offset any reduction in fund principal due to administrative costs; 
3.  To offset any depletive effect of inflation on the fund principal during the fiscal year, as may be determined by a 
nationally recognized inflation index.  

D.  The net income of the fund is unrestricted general income of the city. 
(Ord. 933, 2003: Ord. 915, 2002: Ord. 615 § 5, 1987). 

5.44.060 - Principal.  

A.  Fund principal may be appropriated only by ordinance. A public hearing shall be held on the introduction and first 
reading of such ordinance. The procedure for passage of any such ordinance shall be governed by subsection B of this 
section.  
B.  No ordinance to appropriate principal from the fund shall be passed, except upon the favorable roll call of all seven city 
council members, or six city council members and the mayor, the results of which shall be entered in the minutes of the 
meeting. The mayor shall be allowed to vote only if exactly six of the city council members vote in favor of any such 
appropriation.  
(Ord. 789 (part), 1997; Ord. 702 (part), 1992; Ord. 615 § 6, 1987). 

 

33



 

A memo from Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DATE:    February 10, 2016 
 
TO:       Mayor & City Council, public 
 
SUBJECT:      Resolution 02-16-07 
 
 
The attached resolution is before Council in order to amend the budget to pay a cost associated 
with action that Council took at the February 3, 2016 meeting. The vote is required by charter and 
code to be by a roll call and the pertinent code and charter follow the resolution for information 
purposes. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Move to approve Resolution 02-16-07. 
 
Required Action:  Majority roll call vote. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 

 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 02-16-07 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT TO THE FY16 BUDGET AND AUTHORIZING 
EXPENDITURE OF AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $18,500 FOR CULVERT 
RELOCATION ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LOT 8, FOREST HEIGHTS 

SUBDIVISION, CORDOVA, ALASKA 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cordova has adopted the City Operating 
Budget and appropriated funds for FY16 for the period of January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016; 
and 

  
WHEREAS, the City Council has agreed that as a matter of policy it will share costs with 

the property owner to relocate a culvert on said property, the use of City funds not to exceed 
$18,500 for the project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the funds to be used will come from the general fund reserve and will be 

expensed out of line #401-802-55360. 
 

 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska that amendment to the FY16 Budget is hereby authorized and expenditure of an amount 
not to exceed $18,500 to be used to relocate a culvert on property described as Lot 8, Forest Heights 
Subdivision, Cordova, Alaska is also hereby authorized. 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2016. 
 

       __________________________________ 
       James Kacsh, Mayor 
         
      ATTEST: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 
 

 

35



Code: 

3.12.080 ‐ Meetings—Passage of proposals. 

A majority of  the members of  the council shall constitute a quorum. Any action  the council  is authorized or 

required to take under the Charter or this code may be taken by favorable vote of a majority of the quorum 

except as follows:  

A.  A majority of all members of the council shall be required for final passage of an ordinance, in accordance 

with Article II, § 2‐13 of the Charter;  

B.  A majority of all the members of the council shall be required to adopt a budget and make appropriations 

for the next fiscal year in accordance with Article V, § 5‐4 of the Charter;  

C.    A  majority  of  all  the  members  of  the  council  shall  be  required  for  the  transfer  of  unencumbered 

appropriations in accordance with Article V, § 5‐6 of the Charter;  

D.  An appropriation from the city general reserve fund must be in accordance with Section 5.44.060  

E.   Concurring  vote of  four members  shall be necessary when  the  council  sits  as  a board of  adjustment  in 

accordance with Section 3.40.100  

F.   Vacancies  in  the office of mayor and council membership shall be  filled by majority vote of  the council's 

remaining members in accordance with Article II § 2‐10 of the Charter;  

G.    The  city manager  shall  be  appointed  or  removed  by  a  vote  of  a majority  of  all  council members,  in 

accordance with Article III, § 3‐1 of the Charter;  

H.  A majority of all the members of the council shall be required to create an office or position of employment 

or to incur an expenditure of funds for purposes not specifically included in an approved budget.  

The council shall vote on a roll call vote where a majority of all members  is required, or upon request of any 

council member. The results of all votes shall be entered into the minutes of the meeting.  

 

Charter: 

Section 5‐4. ‐ Budget: Amendment—Adoption—Appropriations. 

The council may insert, strike out, increase or decrease items in the budget, and may otherwise amend it; but 

the proposed expenditures shall never exceed the anticipated revenues therein. The council, by majority vote 

of all its members, not later than the third day before the beginning of the fiscal year, shall adopt the budget 

and make appropriations for such fiscal year. If the council fails to adopt the budget and make appropriations 

on or before that day, the budget, as submitted or as amended, as the case may be, shall go into effect and be 

deemed to have been fully adopted by the council, and the proposed expenditures therein shall become the 

appropriations  for  the  next  fiscal  year.  The  appropriations,  when  made  by  the  council  by  resolution  or 

ordinance separate from the budget document, need not be in as great detail as the proposed expenditures in 

the budget; but appropriations shall never exceed the anticipated revenues in the budget. 

Section 5‐6. ‐ Transfer of appropriation balances. 

Except  as  the  council  by  ordinance may  provide  otherwise,  the  city manager may  transfer  unencumbered 

appropriation balances or parts thereof from any item of appropriation within a department, office or agency 

to any other  item of appropriation,  including new  items, within the same department, office or agency. The 

council,  by motion,  resolution  or  ordinance  passed  by  vote  of  a majority  of  all  its members, may  transfer 

unencumbered appropriation balances or parts thereof  from any  item of appropriation to any other  item of 

appropriation, including new items, whether such other item is within the same department, office or agency. 

 

36



 

A memo from Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DATE:    February 10, 2016 
 
TO:       Mayor & City Council, public 
 
SUBJECT:      Resolution 02-16-08 
 
 
The attached resolution is brought before Council by Mayor Kacsh. 
 
Recommended Motion:  Move to approve Resolution 02-16-08. 
 
Required Action:  Majority roll call vote. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 02-16-08 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

DIRECTING STAFF TO DRAFT THE NECESSARY CHARTER CHANGES THAT 
WOULD ALLOW CODE CHANGES TOWARD CREATION OF AN ELECTED 

HEALTH SERVICES BOARD, AND FOR STAFF TO PRESENT THE CHARTER 
CHANGES TIMELY ENOUGH FOR A BALLOT PROPOSITION AT THE MARCH 

2017 GENERAL ELECTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has served as the existing Health Services Board since 2013; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Cordova Community Medical Center is one of the most important entities 
within the City of Cordova; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Cordova Community Medical Center operation and staff are deserving 
of a focused, dedicated, and well-trained Board consisting of members of the community of 
Cordova; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a plan to systematically transition control from the City Council members to 
elected Health Services Board members over a period of time to be determined by City Council 
would be beneficial; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Attorney’s will be consulted to formulate this plan and timely offer the 
required ordinances, resolutions, ballot language as needed to accomplish Council’s goals. 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska that City Staff including City Attorneys will provide charter and code change that will 
accomplish Council’s goal toward attaining an elected Health Services Board that can better serve 
the operation and staff at CCMC and thereby better serve the citizens of Cordova. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2016. 

 
 

       __________________________________ 
       James Kacsh, Mayor 
         
      ATTEST: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

38



2016 Land Disposal Maps 
Page 1 of 2  

Memorandum 
 
To:  City Council 
From:  Planning Staff 
Date:  2/10/16 
Re:  2016 Land Disposal Maps 
     
 
PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The Land Disposal Maps are required to be updated annually. The descriptions of the map designations and 
the update policy are on the cover page of the Land Disposal Maps document, attached following this memo. 
At this time, City Council needs to adopt the 2016 Land Disposal Maps. 
 
2/9/16 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission passed Resolution 16-01 (Attached), 

recommending the City Council adopt the 2016 maps. 
 
PART II – CHANGES TO THE 2016 LAND DISPOSAL MAPS 
 
The 2015 Land Disposal Maps are available on the City’s webpage (in menu on the right): 
http://www.cityofcordova.net/government/planning/lease-or-purchase-city-land.  
 
The changes and notes below are contained in the attached maps and have been reviewed by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
General Changes: 
 

- Some of the map’s perspectives have been altered to show more/less area. 
- Parcel layer has been updated with all new subdivisions. 
- Parcel lines more accurate, fixed errors in parcel lines, etc. 

 
Specific Updates by Map: 
 

- North Fill Development Park 
 Coast Guard lease of a portion of Sorrel Road and a portion of the adjacent lot now 

shown. 
 Mobile Grid lot is now ‘Leased’ as a new Lease with Option to Purchase is in place. 

- Ocean Dock Subdivision 
 Alpine Diesel lease area is shown.  
 The small parcel next to CEC’s leased area adjacent to New England Cannery Row 

was formerly shown as ‘Not Available.’ It has been determined that this parcel is not 
owned by the city. 

 The two northernmost tideland lots across from Shelter Cove have been shown as ‘Not 
Available’ on previous Land Disposal Maps. Staff recommend designating these 
parcels as ‘Tidelands’ since they are tidelands and there are no deed restrictions in 
place. 

- Odiak Park 
 The lot sold to the Hansons has been removed.  

39



2016 Land Disposal Maps 
Page 2 of 2  

 The area purchased by the Winters is now properly depicted. 
- Old Town Area 

 The lot on Third Street is now ‘Leased’ as a new Lease with Option to Purchase is in 
place. 

- South Fill Development Park 
 AC lease area is depicted showing the area no leased on the north edge of the 

properties for harbor parking. 
- Tidewater Development Park & Cordova Industrial Park 

 Ocean Beauty’s tidelands purchase is shown.  
 The tidelands the city will soon be granted management authority over are now 

depicted on this map and on the South Fill Development and Whitshed Road maps. 
This is the large 50 acre parcel located outside the ATS 220 boundary. Staff 
recommend designating this parcel as ‘Tidelands.’ 

- Power Creek Road 
 The small sliver of land across the road from the cemetery has not been depicted in the 

past. Staff recommend designating this parcel ‘Not Available’ with the rest of Nirvana 
Park. 

 
PART III – STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommend that City Council adopt the 2016 Land Disposal Maps.  
 
PART IV – SUGGESTED ACTION 
 
“I move to adopt the 2016 Land Disposal Maps.” 
 

40



41



2016 Land Disposal Maps 
 

 

 

 

Adopted by City Council: XXXXX 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Map Designations 
 
Available – Available to purchase, lease, or lease with an option to purchase.  
 
Not Available – The identified property is NOT available for sale. A response will be sent to the 
interested party stating that the parcel is not available for purchase. These parcels include 
protected watersheds, substandard lots, snow dumps, and other lots used by the city.  
 
Tidelands – All requests to purchase tidelands will be reviewed by the Planning Commission as 
they are received. The Planning Commission will make a recommendation on disposing of the 
tidelands to City Council. 
 
Leased – These are lots currently leased to a business or government entity by the City and are 
not available during the lease term. There are leases that are short term and renew every two 
years and others are long term leases with substantial improvements on the property. At the end 
of the lease term the property becomes available for disposal. 
 
 
 

Final Update Policy 
 
Maps will be updated on an annual basis by the Planning Department staff, reviewed by the 
Planning Commission, and adopted by City Council. This update process will begin after each 
new year with updated maps being presented to the Planning Commission in January. 

42



Fir
e S

ub
sta

tio
n

Co
pp

er 
Riv

er 
Hi

gh
wa

y

Five Mile Cutoff Rd

0
19

0
38

0
95

Fe
et

±

Fiv
e M

ile
 L

oo
p

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

43



Sh
elt

er 
Co

ve

Or
ca

Cr
ate

r L
ak

e

New Engl
and

 Cann
ery

 Rd

0
75

0
1,5

00
37

5
Fe

et
±

Ne
w 

En
gla

nd
 C

an
ne

ry
 R

oa
d

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

44



Co
ast

 G
ua

rd

AM
L

Jim Poor Ave

Haida

Sor
rell

 Rd

Copper River Highway

Railro
ad Ave

Sweetbriar Rd

Co
ast 

Guar
d L

ane

Industry RdNorth Ramp Rd

Co
rdo

va 
Re

sid
enc

e R
d

0
14

0
28

0
70

Fe
et

±

No
rth

 Fi
ll D

ev
elo

pm
en

t P
ar

k

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

45



Fe
rry

Sh
elt

er 
Co

ve

AT
S 2

20 
Boun

dar
y

New England Cannery Rd

City Dock
Copper River Highway

MorP
ac 

Rd

Sea
gull

 Ave

Barna
cle B

oulev
ard

Ferry Staging Line

0
35

0
70

0
17

5
Fe

et
±

Oc
ea

n D
oc

k S
ub

div
isi

on

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

46



Hi
gh

 Sc
ho

ol

AT
S 2

20
 Bo

un
da

ry

Copp
er R

iver
 Highw

ay

Whit
she

d R
d

Secon
d St South

Ra
ilro

ad
 Ro

w
Ha

rbo
r L

oop

Or
ca 

St

Cliff 
Trail

Chas
e A

ven
ue

Second St

Pipe St

Sa
wm

ill 
Av

e

Fis
he

rm
an

 Av
e

Marine Way South

First St South

Boardwalk 
Way

Forestry Way

Ra
ilro

ad
 Av

e

0
15

0
30

0
75

Fe
et

±

Od
iak

 Sl
ou

gh

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

47



Ele
me

nta
ry 

Sc
ho

ol

Ho
spi

tal

Co
ast

 G
ua

rd 
Ho

usi
ng

La
ke

 Av
e

Ch
ase

 Av
en

ue

Co
pp

er 
Ri

ve
r H

igh
wa

y

Le Fevre St

Mc
lau

gh
lin

Ad
am

s

Ce
nte

r D
r

Po
we

r C
ree

k R
oa

d

Whit
she

d R
d

Sixth St

Ad
am

s A
ve

Ninth

Railro
ad Row

Birch St

Al
der

 W
ay

Third St

Eighth St

Seventh St

No Name

Burton Road

Cedar St

Fourth St

Ingress St

Spruce St

Co
rdo

va
 W

ork
cen

ter
 Rd

Wolf 
Hill R

d

0
26

0
52

0
13

0
Fe

et
±

Od
iak

 Pa
rk

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

48



Ci
ty 

Ha
ll

Ele
me

nta
ry 

Sc
ho

ol

Bi
da

rki

Wa
ter

 Ta
nk

Co
ast

 G
ua

rd 
Ho

usi
ng

La
ke

 Av
e

Railroad Ave

Second St

Sixth St

Fourth St

Copper River Highway

Da
vis

 Av
e

Ad
am

s A
ve

Ad
am

s

Co
un

cil
 Av

e

Third St

Br
ow

nin
g A

ve

Alley

Water St

Fifth St

Ninth

Yo
un

g D
r

Alder Way

Cabin Ridge Rd

First St Alley

No Name

Eighth St

Seventh St

Burton Road

Fe
der

al 
Wa

y

Ob
ser

va
tio

n A
ve

Front St

Off Davis

Co
un

cil
 Av

e

Sixth St

Third St

First St Alley

Fourth St

Ad
am

s A
ve

First St Alley

Fir
st S

t A
lle

y
0

22
0

44
0

11
0

Fe
et

±

Ol
d T

ow
n A

rea

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

49



Ci
ty 

Ha
ll

AC

Hi
gh

 Sc
ho

ol

Ha
rbo

r

Tri
de

nt

ATS 220 Boundary

Nic
hol

off
 W

ay

Railroad Ave

Ha
rbo

r L
oop

Water St

Fisherman Ave

Ad
am

s A
ve

0
17

5
35

0
87

.5
Fe

et
±

So
uth

 Fi
ll D

ev
elo

pm
en

t P
ar

k

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

50



Ci
ty 

Ha
ll

Bi
da

rki

Ha
rbo

r

Oc
ean

 Be
au

tyTri
de

nt

Tri
de

nt

Railroad Ave

ATS 220 Boundary

Copper River Highway

Second St

Jim
 Poor Ave

Co
un

cil
 Av

e

Industry Rd

Third St

Br
eak

wa
ter

 Av
e

Alley

Haida

Water St

Da
vis

 Av
e

Br
ow

nin
g A

ve

Marin
e W

ay

First St Alley

Fe
der

al 
Wa

y

Ob
ser

va
tio

n A
ve

Front St

Cord
ova

 Resid
enc

e R
d

First St Alley

0
24

0
48

0
12

0
Fe

et
±

Ti
de

wa
ter

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t P

ar
k &

 C
or

do
va

 In
du

str
ial

 Pa
rk

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

51



Ci
ty 

Ha
ll Ele

me
nta

ry 
Sc

ho
ol

AC

Ho
spi

tal

Hi
gh

 Sc
ho

ol

Ca
mp

er 
Pa

rk

Re
ser

vo
ir

Co
ast

 G
ua

rd 
Ho

usi
ng

Wh
itsh

ed 
Rd

La
ke

 Av
e

Co
pp

er 
Ri

ve
r H

igh
wa

y

Meals 
Road

Ch
ase

 Av
en

ue

ATS 220 Boundary

Le Fevre St

Mc
lau

gh
lin

Ad
am

s

Nic
hol

off
 W

ay

Second St

Ce
nte

r D
r

Ha
rbo

r L
oop

Ra
ilro

ad
 Ro

w

Or
ca 

Inl
et 

Dr

Railroad Ave

Se
con

d S
t S

ou
th

Sixth St

Ninth

He
nri

ch
s R

oad
 Ea

st

Wh
isk

ey 
Rid

ge 
Rd

Birch St

Third St

Eighth St

Marine Way South
Burton Road

Baler
 Rd

Fourth St

Ingress St

Blu
ff T

rai
l

0
55

0
1,1

00
27

5
Fe

et
±

W
hit

sh
ed

 R
oa

d

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

52



Co
ast

 G
ua

rd 
Ho

usi
ng

Tri
po

d H
ill

Po
we

r C
ree

k R
oa

d

La
ke 

Av
e Le Fevre St

Lake View 

Birch St

Ch
ase

 Av
en

ue

Yo
un

g D
r

Cedar St

Spruce St

Alder Way

Mc
lau

gh
lin

Lake View 

0
48

0
96

0
24

0
Fe

et
±

Po
we

r C
ree

k R
oa

d

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

Ce
me

ter
y

No
t A

va
ila

ble

53



Co
pp

er 
Ri

ve
r H

igh
wa

y

Mc
lau

gh
lin

Al
pin

e D
riv

e 

Hi
gh

lan
d D

r

Kim
mic

k W
ay

Mt
 Ec

cle
s S

t

Mu
rch

eso
n R

d

Highland Dr

0
47

5
95

0
23

7.5
Fe

et
±

Ey
ak

 L
ak

e

Ci
ty 

Pr
op

ert
y

Av
ail

ab
le

No
t A

va
ila

ble
Tid

ela
nd

s
Le

ase
d

54



Memorandum 
 
To:  City Council 
From:  Planning Staff 
Date:  2/10/16 
Re:  Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building 
    
 
PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Requested Actions: Award Disposal to Proposer 
Legal Description: Lots 12-18, Block 6, Original Townsite 
Parcel Number: 02-173-512, 513, 514, 515, 516, 517, 518 
Zoning: Central Business District 
Lot Area:  Each lot area = 2,500 SF; Total Area = 17,500 SF 
Attachments:  Criteria Results from Planning Commission 

Proposal Packet (The packet distributed to potential proposers) 
   Proposals 
 
The request for proposals for this property began October 24th, 2015 and ended January 5th, 2016 at 5 PM. The 
City received seven proposals for the property.  
 
The proposed price from each proposal is as follows: 
 Facility Contractors ...................................... $505,000.00 
 Seaman’s Hardware ..................................... $400,000.00 
 Moose Lodge ............................................... $213,148.00 
 Cannery Row, Inc. ....................................... $307,500.00 
 Cordova Drug .............................................. No price 
 Children’s Pallas .......................................... $215,000.00 
 Native Village of Eyak ................................. $30,000.00 
 
Following this memo is the full proposal packet for the Library/Museum Land and/or Building and each 
proposal. Any duplicated and unaltered pages from the proposal packet contained in the proposals are 
omitted. 
 
In accordance with the Cordova Municipal Code, the City Council will select the proposal to award the 
property to or reject the proposals. 
 
PART II – BACKGROUND 
 
4/14/15 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission passed Resolution 15-05, which 

recommended the City Council make Lots 12-18, Block 6, Original Townsite available on the Land 
Disposal Maps. The commission also recommended the City Council dispose of the building by 
requesting sealed proposals.  

 
5/6/15 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, the council made the lots available and directed the City 

Manager to dispose of the Library/Museum buildings. 
 

Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building  
Page 1 of 3 55



10/1/15 – The city received no proposals for the Library/Museum buildings. 
 
10/7/15 – From the City Council Regular Meeting Minutes: 
 

22. Council action regarding disposal of Library / Museum Building  
M/Joyce S/Carpenter to direct the City Manager to put out an RFP for the sale of the lots with the building 
on it.  
Bailer said he disagrees. He doesn’t know why an amount was put on the RFP. He would prefer it go back 
to Planning and Zoning. Beedle said his biggest concern is the added cost to the people of Cordova, he wants 
it out of the City’s hands, as was promised. Reggiani reiterated the motion – RFP for land and building – he 
said he supports that. Burton asked if we can put out an RFP with an either/or option Mayor Kacsh said he 
was going to suggest that as well – an RFP with all proposals accepted. Joyce agrees and thinks the City 
Manager can work that into the RFP – as he is listening to us right now. Reggiani agreed – any and all 
proposals will be accepted. Robertson said he understood – any and all proposals accepted. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Hallquist). Motion was approved. 

 
1/12/16 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission discussed the proposals and referred 

the item back to staff. For more information refer to the approved minutes for the meeting. 
 
2/3/16 – At the City Council Regular Meeting, council had a discussion about the roles and responsibilities of 

the Planning Commission as it relates to land disposal and the disposal criteria. The council agreed to 
have a Joint Work Session with the commission to discuss this issue for future land disposals. There 
are no changes with the current Library/Museum disposal. 

 
2/9/16 – At the Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the commission made the following motions: 
  
 M/Baenen S/McGann to recommend to City Council to consider all seven proposals for Lots 12-18, Block 6, 

Original Townsite and the improvements thereon.  
 

M/Kocan S/McGann to amend the main motion by striking “all seven proposals” and inserting “the 
proposals from Facility Contractors, Seaman’s Hardware, and Cannery Row.” 
Upon voice vote, motion to amend passed 4-0. 
Yea: Bailer, McGann, Baenen, Kocan 
COI: Roemhildt 

 
 Upon voice vote, main motion passed 4-0. 

Yea: Bailer, McGann, Baenen, Kocan 
COI: Roemhildt 

 
The commissioners provided their criteria scores and came up with an average score for each proposal. 
Those scores are attached. 
 

PART III – APPLICABLE CRITERIA 
 
Chapter 5.22.060 – REVENUE AND FINANCE – DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – Methods of 

disposal for fair market value. 
 

 D. A request for proposals to lease or purchase city real property shall specify the criteria upon which 
proposals will be evaluated and the minimum rent or purchase price. All proposals submitted in response 
to a request for proposals shall be reviewed by the planning commission, which shall make a 
recommendation to the city council to accept or decline any or all of the proposals. The city council shall 

Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building  
Page 2 of 3 56



review the proposals and the planning commission's recommendation and accept or decline any of the 
proposals. 

 
PART IV – SUGGESTED MOTION 
 
“I move to award the disposal to [insert proposer] for Lots 12-18, Block 6, Original Townsite and the 
improvements thereon.” 

Review of Proposals for the Existing Library/Museum Land and/or Building  
Page 3 of 3 57



Tom Bailer Tom McGann John Baenen Heath Kocan Average Score

Facility Contractors 90.5 89 60 75.75 78.81

Seaman's Hardware 66 74.6 48.25 61.75 62.65

Cannery Row 69.5 89 58 69.25 71.44

Criteria Results from the Planning Commission 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91

planner2
Snapshot



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104

planner2
Snapshot



105

planner2
Snapshot



106

planner2
Snapshot



107

planner2
Snapshot

planner2
Snapshot



108

planner2
Snapshot



109

planner2
Snapshot

planner2
Snapshot

planner2
Snapshot



110



111

planner2
Snapshot



112

planner2
Snapshot



113

planner2
Snapshot



114



115



116



117



118



Pending agenda:  
 

Winter/Spring 2016: Code change regarding HSB and/or creation of a Health Care Advisory Board – 
awaiting QHR input (possibly more info forthcoming after Jan 11 QHR meeting w-council) 
 

Capital Priorities List Meeting Mar 2, 2016; Jun 1, 2016; Sep 7, 2016; Dec 7, 2016 – on hold due to 
limited (none) capital budget at state level 
 

HSB Quarterly regular meetings Apr 6, 2016; July 6, 2016; Oct 5, 2016; Jan 4, 2017 
 Presently the board is meeting monthly – special meetings between the regular quarterly 
 meetings 
 

Staff quarterly reports in packets: April 20, 2016; Jul 20, 2016; Oct 19, 2016; Jan 18, 2017 
 

Joint Work Session with the Native Village of Eyak Tribal Council – met 11-9-15 (no City Council 
quorum); to meet quarterly – next tba (February?) 
 

Date TBD - discussion regarding water charges at the harbor 
 

per City Manager suggestion – work session with Sheridan Ski Club as soon as he hears form them on 
a good date 
 

Formation of a marijuana-related committee 
 

October 1, 2016 - effective date of substitute ordinance 1137 (plastic bag and polystyrene container ban) 
Council wants this on Pending Agenda so as to keep an eye on public opinion/effectiveness of the 
enactment of this ordinance 
 

Committees:  
 

Cordova Center Committee: Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, Randy Robertson, Kristin Carpenter, Native 
Village of Eyak Representative, Chamber of Commerce Representative, Business Community 
Representative, PWSSC Representative, Stage of the Tides Representative. 

 

Fisheries Advisory Committee: David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim Holley, 
AML; Torie Baker, Chair, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; Chelsea Haisman; and 
Jeremy Botz, ADF&G  

  

Cordova Trails Committee: Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, VACANCY, Toni Godes, and David 
Zastrow  

 

AMHS Committee: (9 member board) 1) Steve Graves (chamber seat), 2) Wendy Ranney (community 
seat), 3) Mike Anderson (community seat), 4) Pete Hoepfner (school seat), other seats to be filled in 
2016 as names are brought forward. 
 

Marijuana Committee: pending 
 

Calendars:  
 

3 months of calendars are attached hereto  
Feb 2016; Mar 2016; Apr 2016 

119



CALENDAR MONTH FEBRUARY
CALENDAR YEAR 2016
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
31 1 2 3 4 5 6

6:45 Council pub hrg 
CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg 
CCAB

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

6:30 P&Z CCB 7:00 Sch Bd HSL
7:00 Harbor Cms CCB

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Pesidents' Day-City 
Hall

Offices Closed

6:45 Council pub hrg 
CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg 
CCAB

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 1 2 3 4 5

6 7 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Cordova Center 
Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Cordova Center 
Community Rm A
CCB-Cordova Center 
Community Rm B

CCM-Cordova Center 
Mayor's Conference Rm

2016
FEBRUARY

CSD Holiday absentee voting absentee voting absentee voting absentee voting absentee voting

absentee voting absentee voting absentee voting absentee voting absentee voting absentee voting

absentee voting

iceworm festival iceworm festival

iceworm festival

iceworm festivaliceworm festivaliceworm festival

superbowl '50'

CSD Inservice

Bball @ Vdz Elks Bball @ Vdz Elks Bball @ Vdz Elks

home Bball vs Tok home Bball vs Tok

shoreside 
prep ex - oil 

spill drill

shoreside 
prep ex - oil 

spill drill

shoreside 
prep ex - oil 

spill drill

shoreside 
prep ex - oil 

spill drill

Valentine's

120



CALENDAR MONTH MARCH
CALENDAR YEAR 2016
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
28 29 1 2 3 4 5

ELECTION DAY

6:45 Council pub hrg 
(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg 
CCAB

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

6:30 P&Z CCB 7:00 Sch Bd HSL
7:00 Harbor Cms CCB

12:00 Council spec mtg 
CCAB - certifying 
election results

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

6:45 Council pub hrg 
(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg 
CCAB

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31 1 2

Easter Sunday

3 4 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Cordova Center 
Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Cordova Center 
Community Rm A
CCB-Cordova Center 
Community Rm B

CCM-Cordova Center Mayor's 
Conference Rm

2016
MARCH

CSD Spring Break CSD Spring Break

CSD Spring Break

CSD Spring Break CSD Spring Break

CSD Basketball Conference Tourney @ Tok

CSD parent/teacher conferences 3/30, 3/31, 4/1

St. Patrick's Day

121



CALENDAR MONTH APRIL
CALENDAR YEAR 2016
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
27 28 29 30 31 1 2

Alaska Shield Exercise Alaska Shield Exercise

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

6:45 Council pub hrg 
(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg 
CCAB

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

6:30 P&Z CCB 7:00 Sch Bd HSL
7:00 Harbor Cms CCB Health Fair

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

6:45 Council pub hrg 
(maybe) CCAB
7:00 Council reg mtg 
CCAB

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

1 2 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Cordova Center 
Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Cordova Center 
Community Rm A
CCB-Cordova Center 
Community Rm B

CCM-Cordova Center Mayor's 
Conference Rm

2016
APRIL

CSD Inservice

CSD parent/teacher conferences 3/30, 3/31, 4/1

122



seat/length of term email Date Elected Term Expires
Mayor: James Kacsh March 5, 2013 March-16
3 years Mayor@cityofcordova.net

Council members:
Seat A: Kristin Carpenter March 5, 2013 March-16
3 years CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net

Seat B: Timothy Joyce March 4, 2014 March-17
3 years CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net March 14, 2013 filled vacancy

August 2, 2012 appt to A
Seat C: Tom Bailer March 4, 2014 March-17
3 years CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net

Seat D: Robert Beedle March 3, 2015 March-18
3 years CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net

Seat E: Josh Hallquist March 3, 2015 March-18
3 years CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net

Seat F: David Reggiani March 5, 2013 March-16
3 years CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net March 2, 2010

March 3, 2009 1 yr trm
Seat G: James Burton, Vice-Mayor March 5, 2013 March-16
3 years CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net

length of term Date Elected Term Expires
3 years Bret Bradford March 3, 2015 March-18
3 years Tammy Altermott March 5, 2013 March-16
3 years Peter Hoepfner March 3, 2015 March-18

March 6, 2012
March 3, 2009
March 7, 2006

3 years Sheryl Glasen March 4, 2014 March-17
3 years Barb Jewell, President March 5, 2013 March-16
3 years Vacant (appointed, non-voting)

City Council Rep

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Wendy Ranney November-15 November-18
April-13

3years Shannon Mallory November-13 November-16
3 years Krysta Williams December-14 November-17

November-11
3 years Kay Groff December-14 November-17

December-11
January-09

3 years Mary Anne Bishop, Chair November-13 November-16
November-10
November-06

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL - ELECTED
& APPOINTED MEMBERS OF CITY BOARDS and COMMISSIONS
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA – ELECTED OFFICIALS

SCHOOL BOARD - ELECTED

LIBRARY BOARD - APPOINTED

123



length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Kristin Carpenter, President with Council office

3 years Tom Bailer with Council office

3 years Tim Joyce with Council office

3 years James Burton with Council office

3 years Robert Beedle with Council office

3 years Josh Hallquist with Council office

3 years David Reggiani with Council office

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Allen Roemhildt January-14 November-16
3 years Scott Pegau December-14 November-17

December-11
3 years John Baenen November-15 November-18

December-12
3 years Tom Bailer, chair November-13 November-16

December-11
November-08

3 years Tom McGann, vice chair December-14 November-17
December-11

April-11
3 years Heath Kocan November-15 November-18
3 years Mark Frohnapfel February-15 November-17

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Robert Beedle, chair January-14 November-17
3 years Greg LoForte February-13 November-16

January-10
January-07

3 years Max Wiese January-14 November-17
March-11

3 years Ken Jones February-13 November-16
3 years Jacob Betts November-15 November-18

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires
3 years Kara Johnson February-15 November-17

December-12
3 years Miriam Dunbar November-15 November-18

August-14
3 years Wendy Ranney, Chair November-15 November-18

August-14
3 years Stephen Phillips November-15 November-18
3 years Marvin VanDenBroek February-14 November-16
3 years Karen Hallquist November-13 November-16
3 years Dave Zastrow February-15 November-17

September-14
seat up for re-election in 2016
termed out in 2016

HARBOR COMMISSION - APPOINTED

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION - APPOINTED

CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER – HEALTH SERVICES BOARD - with Council election

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION - APPOINTED

124


	GLT - gst spkr
	City Council 2.17.16 meeting handout
	Shelter Cove Stern Info Map w topo 1.26.16
	Shelter Cove Stern Info Map w image 1.26.16

	HC res-all
	Agenda memo re election board for 02-17-16
	01-20-16 Public Hearing Minutes
	01-20-16 Regular Meeting Minutes
	02-03-16 Public Hearing Minutes
	Paving bid-all
	CITY OF CORDOVA
	Office of City Manager


	mayor rpt
	Table of contents
	ord 1141-all
	ADPDD5.tmp
	A Memo from Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk


	res 02-16-07-all
	Res 02-16-08-all
	Land Disposal Maps-all
	LibraryMuseum item-all
	1 att to l-m bldg item.pdf
	Sheet1

	3 att to l-m bldg item -AllProposals.pdf
	FacilityContractorsLLC
	1

	SeamensHardware
	MooseLodge
	CanneryRow
	CordovaDrug
	ChildrensPallas
	6

	NVE


	PA, cal, eaol
	febmarapr.pdf
	ADPF8A4.tmp
	Mar 16

	ADPDD78.tmp
	Apr 16



	02-17-16 Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors
	N. New & Miscellaneous Business
	O. Audience Participation
	P. Council Comments
	21. Council Comments
	Q. Executive Session




